
Page 1 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

   MINUTES 

 February 18, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
PRESENT: Mark Olson, Chair 
  Fran McMahon, Clerk 
  Rick Griffin, Selectman Member 

Keith Lessard 
Ann Carnaby 

  Jason Bachand, Town Planner 
  Laurie Olivier, Office Manager/Planning 
 
ABSENT:   Tracy Emerick 
  Brendan McNamara, Vice Chair 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Chairman Olson began the meeting at 7:00 p.m. by introducing the Board members and 
leading the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 
 

II. ATTENDING TO BE HEARD 
 

III.  CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
14-029   Stowecroft Drive/Dalton Woods  (continued from July 16, 2014 & 9/3/14, 10/1/14 
& 12/17/14)   
Map:  41   Lot: 1 
Applicant:  Richard Green/Green & Company Real Estate 
Owner of Record: Lloyd T. Graves Revocable Trust 
Design Review (Converted from Subdivision Application 14-004). 
 
 Mr. McMahon stated that the applicants have requested to be heard at the Planning 
Board’s May 6, 2015 meeting.  Mr. Lessard asked why this has to continue to be continued.  Mr. 
Bachand said they are going before the Board of Selectmen regarding ownership of the parcel. 
They've asked for another continuance in light of that.  Mr. McMahon said the Planning Board 
should wait for the Board of Selectmen to meet and go from there.   
 
MOTION by Mr. McMahon to not put this on the Planning Board agenda until after the Board 
of Selectmen meet and the applicants can go from there.   
SECOND by Ms. Carnaby.  Mr. Lessard noted that this should be tabled until further notice. 
VOTE:  5 – 0 – 0    MOTION PASSED. 
 
 

IV. NEW PUBLIC HEARINGS  
  

 



Page 2 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

   MINUTES 

 February 18, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

V. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES of February 4, 2015. 
 
MOTION by Mr. Lessard to accept the February 4, 2015 Minutes. 
SECOND by Mr. McMahon. 
VOTE: 5 – 0 – 0     MOTION PASSED. 

 
VI. CORRESPONDENCE 

 
VII. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 Legal opinion from Attorney Peter J. Loughlin re: street lights, fire hydrants, etc. 
 
 Mr. Bachand stated we received the legal opinion of Attorney Peter Loughlin. We invited 
the Board of Selectmen to attend this evening and the Board of Selectmen opted for a non-
meeting with Town counsel.  Mr. Griffin thought this would be televised, but the Board of 
Selectmen opted to not have it televised.  Ms. Carnaby asked why the Board of Selectmen 
objected.  Mr. Griffin stated it was the advice of Town counsel to not have it public.  Mr. 
McMahon wants to talk about this further, but we are short a few people.  Mr. McMahon 
discussed the letter from Attorney Loughlin.  He felt it was good and strong from a Planning 
Board perspective.  Attorney Gearreald may have a different opinion.  Attorney Loughlin was 
strong dealing with the rights of the Planning Board.  Mr. Olson said dollar values do not have to 
do with decision making of the Planning Board.  These projects add revenue.  Mr. Olson asked 
what would be next; i.e. school bus transportation and trash as future controlling issues.  The tax 
base should be adequate to support a street light.   

Mr. Griffin said Mr. Welch’s way of looking at it is different than the Planning Board’s.  
Why it runs into the default budget was asked by Mr. Lessard.  The Board of Selectmen looks at 
it differently.  Mr. McMahon said new developments are going to be paying for street lights, just 
not on their street because it is built into the tax base.  That is true of drainage systems, hydrants 
(requirement of Fire Department).  Bonding was discussed by Mr. Griffin.  Mr. Griffin noted that 
Mr. Welch is operating according to his Regulations.  Mr. Griffin is curious to see if the Town 
votes for the budget.  Mr. McMahon said you can't run the corporation on a whim of no street 
lights this year and no something else year after year.  It should be discussed in the open.    Mr. 
Lessard said we should be challenging the default budget laws if that's the case.  Land 
development rights and public safety rights and rights to develop were discussed by Mr. Lessard.  
This would be a built-in cost.  We're saying you can't build anymore per Mr. Lessard.  If the 
Town is using the budget to take away from safety, it should be addressed.   

Mr. Lessard asked who is paying for Sherburne Road lights.  No one knows.  Mr. Lessard 
discussed drainage structures wanted by the Public Works, wanting public access, etc.  Now 
there is push away from that so neighborhoods take care of it.  Now the Town doesn't even want 
to know if there is a crisis.  Mr. Lessard discussed the Regulations.   

Impact fees were discussed by Mr. Lessard.  Mr. Lessard said when we add more taxable 
property, the rate per thousand goes down.  Having a sewer moratorium was discussed.  Mr. 
Lessard stated that the costs should be in the default budget. The Town should go to the Supreme 



Page 3 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

   MINUTES 

 February 18, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

Court on this.  The Planning Board is following the Regulations.  The Planning Board is here to 
serve the public.  People have the right to do what they want with their land. The Town is 
fighting over pennies.   
 Keeping the budget low was discussed by Mr. McMahon.  Nothing gets maintained per 
Mr. McMahon.  Drainage systems are not being maintained.  That work gets taken out of the 
budget.   He noted that the downtown streets are a mess.  It is all a function of many years of the 
Town saying “we don't need maintenance”.  Mr. Olson said of all the issues the Town faces, why 
does the Town need to fight on something so ridiculous.  There are other issues that could use 
attention and need to be addressed; more serious issues.  We have serious problems that no one is 
addressing.  People would give more money if they would get something for it.  Mr. Olson said it 
is a waste of time.   
 Mr. Griffin discussed snow being removed costing a lot of money.  We have the oldest 
population in NH.   
 Mr. Lessard said we have a pro Board of Selectmen.  He re-addressed life safety.  Mr. 
Lessard asked that we send each one of the Selectmen all of the impact fee studies.   
 Mr. Olson asked about tax revenue itself.  Mr. McMahon is in favor of exactions rather 
than impact fees.   
 Mr. Olson discussed not being able to paint a line (crosswalk) to get into the 
basketball/soccer facility. Mr. Lessard said the Planning Board should continue to do what we 
are doing because it is part of our rules.   
 Mr. Lessard stated that Mr. Welch would like street lights in conduit.     
 Mr. McMahon said the Regs have been done over a long period of time.  Mr. Bachand is 
going to look at the Regs soon.  The Board of Selectmen wants them to come to a meeting to 
discuss this.  Mr. Lessard said it should be a neutral day.  It should be a public forum.  Interested 
parties can come and attend.  Mr. Lessard said an article should be created and published.  Mr. 
Olson said this is an open discussion.   
 Ms. Carnaby discussed growing pains of the Town and she thinks the solution would be 
to somehow procedurally work out details that meet current needs.  She thinks a good idea is to 
have a public meeting with both Boards and invite the public and find a procedural solution that 
will serve for the immediate time period.    
 Mr. Bachand reiterated inviting the Board of Selectmen.  The Board of Selectmen wants 
Town counsel present.  Attorney Peter Loughlin could attend also.  Mr. Bachand asked what the 
Planning Board wants to do.   Mr. McMahon said he doesn't want this to become a lawyer thing.  
Mr. McMahon wants to speak clearly amongst each other.  Ms. Carnaby said the Town should 
move forward and its wrap arms around the issue.  Mr. Olson said the Planning Board was not 
being listened to so it needed to dig a little deeper.  Mr. Olson said it appears simple.  The 
Planning Board wants Mr. Bachand to coordinate the meeting.  It should be at night, but 
not on the same night as the regular Board of Selectmen and Planning Board meetings.  
Mr. Bachand said he will see if the Board of Selectmen still wants to meet.  Ms. Carnaby said 
the Board wants to move forward and find a solution.  Ms. Carnaby wants Mr. Bachand to 
prepare some options that the Planning Board could put on the table and discuss.  Mr. 
Olson said they could do quick reviews of how other communities deal with the situation.     



Page 4 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

   MINUTES 

 February 18, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

Mr. Bachand will get back to Mr. Welch with where the Planning Board stands and have 
him speak with the Board of Selectmen to get a date.  The Planning Board wants it to be 
public.  Mr. Lessard said if they want a quiet non-public meeting, that is fine, but at some point it 
has to go to the public.  It was noted that this is a right to know issue.   
 

 Rockingham Planning Commission - Reappointment 
 
 Mr. Bachand said three members are up for reappointments.  Barbara Kravitz is present 
(in the audience).  Mark Olson and Fran McMahon are up for re-appointment. Their terms expire 
in April of this year.  We need a nomination and recommendation for each member. 
 
Nomination by Mr. Griffin to recommend Barbara Kravitz to the RPC.   
Second by Mr. McMahon. 
VOTE:  5 – 0 – 0  
Ms. Kravitz accepted and said “thank you”. 
    
Mr. Griffin nominated Mr. McMahon to be reappointed to the RPC.   
Second by Ms. Carnaby. 
MOTION  4 – 0 – 1 (McMahon).   
Mr. McMahon accepted and said “thank you”. 
 
Mr. Griffin nominated Mark Olson to be reappointed to the RPC. 
Second by Mr. McMahon. 
VOTE:  4 – 0 – 1 (Olson)   
Mr. Olson accepted and said “thank you”. 
 
Mr. Olson stated that he has a plea to the Town/Board to continue to be a part of the Planning 
Board.  He was negligent in getting on the ballot.  He was overwhelmed at the end of the 
January.  He stated that he will continue to do what he can to assist and help the community in 
any way.  He's enjoyed being on the Planning Board for the past six years.  He would/will need 
to be a “write in” candidate.  He asked if someone will write him in.  Mr. Olson apologized for 
not being on the ballot.  Mr. Lesard noted that the other candidates are Maury Friedman and 
Tracy Emerick for two vacant seats for three-year terms.  Also, it was noted with the loss of 
Mark Loopley, there is a seat up for election to finish Mark Loopley’s term.  Ann Carnaby and 
Tammy Deland are running for that seat. Ms. Carnaby announced that she would like to be able 
to finish the job that Mark Loopley started.  It was stated that other folks are welcome to run as 
well. 
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
MOTION  by Mr. McMahon to adjourn. 
SECOND by Ms. Carnaby. 
VOTE:  5 – 0 – 0     MOTION PASSED. 



Page 5 of 5 

 HAMPTON PLANNING BOARD 

   MINUTES 

 February 18, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 

 
MEETING ADJOURNED:  8:00 p.m. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Laurie Olivier, Administrative Assistant 
 
 

**PLEASE NOTE** 

ITEMS NOT CALLED OR IN PROGRESS BY 10:00 P.M. 

MAY BE CONTINUED TO THE NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 


